
 
 
 
 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
August 08, 2017 

5:30 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” 
card to the Recording Secretary. 
 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held July 11, 2017. 

 
2 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission special meeting held July 25, 2017. 
 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by George 

Thum, Jr. & Phillip and Peggy Dionne, from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) and “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 
ac) to “City” Institutional/Public Use, for property located west of Jason Dwelley Parkway, south of West 
Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-053; 18-20-28-0000-00-054)  

 
2. CHANGE OF ZONING/PUD MASTER PLAN - OAK POINTE SOUTH (AKA Thompson Hills Estates), from 

Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit Development (New Master Site Plan); for property owned by 
Thompson Hills Estates LLC (Oak Pointe PUD) and located east of Ocoee Apopka Road, north of 
McCormick Road.  (Parcel ID Nos.: 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016; 29-21-28-0000-00-033; 
and Portions of: 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004; 32-21-28-0000-00-030) 

 
3. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-1 - Owned by Richard Chandler, from “County” 

A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA (Residential), for property located west of North Rock Springs Road, south of 
West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-030; 18-20-28-0000-00-063)  

 
4. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-2 - Owned by Bobby and Jessica Sanders, 

from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA (Residential), for property located west of North Rock Springs 
Road, south of West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-129)  

 
5. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-3 - Owned by Jolly Products and Services, 

from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG (Agriculture), for property located east of Round Lake Road, north of 
West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 11-20-27-0000-00-052)  

 
 

1



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 2 

 
 

6. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-4 - Owned by Edgel LLC, from “County” A-1 
(ZIP) to “City” AG (Agriculture), for property located east of North Rock Springs Road, south of East 
Ponkan Road. (Parcel ID #: 27-20-28-0000-00-061)  

 
7. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-5 - Owned by Deborah Halm, from “County” A-

1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates), for property located west of Mt. Plymouth Road, 
north of West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-122)  

 
8. ORDINANCE NO. 2582 – Amending the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development 

Code, Article III, Section 3.05, to establish a prohibition of medical marijuana treatment center dispensing 
facilities withn the boundaries of the City as authorized by Section 381.986, Florida Statutes. 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

 
1. PLAT – FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) –Owned by Michael L. 

Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP, property located at 180 East 1st Street. (Parcel 
ID #s: 09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122)  

 
2. FINAL DEVEVLOPMENT PLAN – SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE ADDITION –Owned by Shoot 

Straight Holding Co., Inc., property located at 1351 Tropicana Circle. (Parcel ID #s: 13-21-28-5300-02-040; 
13-21-28-5300-02-060; 13-21-28-5300-02-018; 13-21-28-5300-02-080)  

 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

2



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 3 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held July 11, 2017 
  

3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 11, 2017, AT 5:30 

P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and Roger Simpson 

 

ABSENT: Melvin Birdsong, John Spinkle, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Patrick Brackens – City Attorney, Kyle 

Wilkes, AICP – Planner II, Robert Hafer, George Kramer, Bill Gates, Joe Gatez, Suzanne Kidd, Theresa 

Sargent, and Jeanne Green – Recording Secretary. 

 

OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairman Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a moment 

of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 

Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or additions to the regular meeting minutes of June 

12, 2017, at 5:30 p.m.   

 

Motion: Jose Molina made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from the 

regular meeting held on June 12, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded by Roger Simpson.  

Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, 

and Roger Simpson (5-0). 

 

SWEARING-IN – Mr. Brackens swore-in staff, the petitioners, and affected parties for the quasi-judicial 

items to be discussed. 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL - CHANGE OF ZONING – JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL 

PROPERTIES, LLC - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and to 

recommend approval of the change in zoning from PO/I (Professional Office/Institution) and AG 

(Agriculture) to Mixed-EC for the property owned by Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak Royal Properties, 

LLC and located east of Ocoee Apopka Road, north of Keene Road. 

 

Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one 

spoke. 

 

Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 

regarding this item.  No one spoke. 

 

Staff Presentation:  Kyle Wilkes, AICP, Planner II, stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and to 

recommend approval of the change in zoning from PO/I (Professional Office/Institution) and AG 

(Agriculture) to Mixed-EC for the property owned by Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak Royal Properties 

LLC.  The applicant is S&ME, also known as Littlejohn Engineering.  The property is located east of Ocoee 

Apopka Road, north of Keene Road.  The existing uses are container nurseries and a single-family 

residential home.  The future land use is Mixed Use.  The proposed development is a residential and non-

residential mixed-use development.    The existing maximum allowable development is 518 units. The 

proposed maximum allowable development is 975,744 sq. ft. of non-residential development and 336 

multi-family units.  The tract size is 22.4 +/- acres. 

4



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JULY 11, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
2 of 5 

 

The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 5, 2001 through Ordinance 1421.  The 

proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Presently, the subject property has not 

yet been assigned a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification 

of Mixed – EC (Mixed Use – Employment Center) to the property.  

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to Mixed-EC (Mixed Use Employment Center) is compatible to the 

adjacent zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The 

property owner is requesting the Mixed-EC zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property 

residential and non-residential development permitted within the Mixed-EC zoning district.  These uses are 

consistent with the proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation, proposed zoning district and compatible 

with the general character of surrounding zoning and uses.  The change of zoning application covers 

approximately 22.4 acres. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Mixed Use ((0-15 du/ac and/or max 1.0 FAR)) Future 

Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Mixed-EC (Mixed Use – Employment Center) Zoning 

classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools will be required prior to 

adoption of the associated large scale future land use amendment. 

 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City 

properly notified Orange County on April 10, 2017 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and the Land Development Code recommends adoption of the change in Zoning from PO/I (Professional 

Office/Institutional) and AG (Agriculture) to Mixed Use – Employment Center, subject to the adoption of the 

associated large scale future land use amendment, for the properties owned by Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak 

Royal Properties, LLC. 

 

Staff Recommended that the Planning Commission find the proposed rezoning consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and to recommend a change of zoning from PO/I 

(Professional Office/Institutional) and AG (Agriculture) to Mixed Use – Employment Center, subject to the 

adoption of the associated large scale future land use amendment. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 

part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

Land Use & Traffic Compatibility: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a county minor arterial 

(Ocoee Apopka Road) and a collector roadway (Keene Road).  The proposed Mixed-EC (Mixed Use – 

Employment Center) zoning district is consistent and compatible with the adjacent zoning classifications 

and uses within the surrounding area. Property to the north (the existing Emerson Park single-family and 

townhome development) has the same Mixed-EC zoning classification. To the south, “City” zoned property 

has a PO/I zoning classification, with properties within unincorporated Orange County to the east are 

predominant single-family and rural sues. 

 

In addition, the proposed land use designation is consistent with the conceptual land use plan, development 

scenario and recommendations of the Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study, which was completed in 

5



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JULY 11, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
3 of 5 

 

2014.  The Ocoee Apopka Rd SAS Conceptual Plan listed as Exhibit ‘A’ below shows the subject properties 

listed within the “New Market” character area, which is described in the final report as: 

 

“The New Market Zone represents the area in the vicinity of Emerson Park and the hospital. It is anticipated 

that this area will contain the highest degree of pedestrian connectivity.” In addition, the report indicates 

that one scenario for the New Market Area includes the placement of the core (Village Center) of the New 

Market Character area includes the subject property (as shown in Exhibit ‘B’ below). The finds of the report 

suggest this scenario may be the most suitable for the Village Center: 

 

“Scenario 1 shows the core area (Village Center) concentrated at the northeast corner of 

Ocoee-Apopka Road and Keene Road. This site was chosen as an ideal location for the 

Village Center because it is easily accessible from the existing and proposed residential 

neighborhoods to the east. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance: The proposed Mixed-EC zoning is consistent with the City’s Mixed 

Use (max 0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future 

proposed development. The Mixed-EC zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories 

allowed within the Mixed Use Future Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the 

density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 

Zoning District Requirements: All uses and site development requirements will be subject to Sec. 02.02.20 

or Sec. 02.02.18 of the Apopka Land Development Code.  

 

Petitioner Presentation: George M. Kramer, AICP, LEED AP, S&ME, 1615 Edgewater Drive, Ste. 200 

Orlando, FL 32804, thanked staff and concurred with their findings.  He stated he was available for any 

questions. 

 

Affected Party Presentation:  None. 

 

Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 

Greene closed the public hearing.  

 

Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to approve the request for a change of zoning from 

PO/I (Professional Office/Institution) and AG (Agriculture) to Mixed EC, subject to 

adoption of the future land use amendment and the findings and facts presented in the 

staff report, for the property owned by Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak Royal 

Properties, LLC and located east of Ocoee Apopka Road, north of Keene Road.  

Motion seconded by Jose Molina.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, 

Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and Roger Simpson (5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 

LEGISLATIVE – EVALUATION & APPRAISAL REPORT 2017 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN –

Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to recommend approval for the Community Development 

Department to proceed with preparation of an Evaluation and Appraisal Report for the Comprehensive 

Plan, and to notify the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity that an updated Comprehensive Plan 

will be prepared by August 1, 2018. 

 

Staff Presentation:  David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated pursuant to Rule Chapter 73C-49, Florida 

Administrative Code, at least once every seven years, local governments are required to determine whether 

6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JULY 11, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
4 of 5 

 

or not it’s comprehensive plan needs updating to reflect changes in state requirements since its last 

comprehensive plan update.   

 

The EAR process provides the City the opportunity to update Comprehensive Plan policies to ensure they 

address the long-term planning vision of Apopka.  In addition, EAR amendments to the Comprehensive 

Plan allows staff to address inconsistencies between the City’s Comprehensive Plan and updated Land 

Development Code. 

 

Community Development staff will notify the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity’s Community 

Planning Division of the City of Apopka’s intent to review current Comprehensive Plan Goals, Objectives 

& Policies. 

 

Should City staff identify a need to update current policies, any proposed text amendments must be 

transmitted to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity within one year, and will follow the public 

hearing process for Comprehensive Plan text and future land use amendments, including a Planning 

Commission hearing and recommendation followed by City Council public hearings for adoption.   

 

The Planning Commission is delegated the role of Local Planning Agency by the City Council through 

Section 11.05.00.A of the Land Development Code and Ordinance No. 2137.  Pursuant to Florida Statute 

163.3174, “The governing body of each local government, individually or in combination as provided in s. 

163.3171, shall designate and by ordinance establish a “local planning agency,” unless the agency is 

otherwise established by law.”  Responsibilities of the Local Planning Agency, as defined by F.S. 163.3174, 

are included in the Exhibits. 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval for the Community Development 

Department to proceed with preparation of an Evaluation and Appraisal Report for the Comprehensive 

Plan, and to notify the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity that an updated Comprehensive Plan 

will be prepared by August 1, 2018. 

 

In response to questions by Mr. Simpson, Mr. Moon explained the process begins by the Planning 

Commission recommending City Council’s authorization for staff to transmit a Letter of Intent to the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (FDEO) by August 1, 2017; and to begin the review of the 

Comprehensive Plan Goals, Objectives & Policies.  It is possible that during staff’s review community 

meetings or workshops may be scheduled. Once the review is complete the proposed amendments will be 

transmitted to FDEO for its review within one year.  Once the State review is complete and any revisions 

made, public hearings will be scheduled for presentation to the Planning Commission and to City Council.  

Since consultants will not be engaged to review and prepare the amendments, this will have handled in-

house. 

 

Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 

Greene closed the public hearing.  

 
Motion:   Roger Simpson made a motion to recommend authorization to notify the Florida 

Department of Economic Opportunity that an updated Comprehensive Plan will be 
prepared by August 1, 2018; and the Community Development Department to proceed 
with preparation of an Evaluation and Appraisal Report for the Comprehensive Plan, 
and. Motion seconded by Tony Foster.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony 
Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and Roger Simpson (5-0).  (Vote taken by 
poll.) 

7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JULY 11, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
5 of 5 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:46 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt  
Community Development Director 

 

8



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 9 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission special meeting held July 25, 2017. 
  

9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 

P.M. IN THE CITY OF APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER, 519 S. CENTRAL AVENUE, 

APOPKA, FLORIDA. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, 

Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle 

 

ABSENT: Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  James Hitt, FRA-RA, Community Development Director, David Moon, AICP - 

Planning Manager, Richard Earp – City Engineer; Patrick Brackins – City Attorney, Pam Richmond, AICP, 

Senior Planner, and Jeanne Green – Recording Secretary.  There were approximately 300 residents in the 

audience. (The sign-in sheets are made a part of the record.) 

 

OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairman Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a moment 

of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 

 

SWEARING-IN – Mr. Brackens swore-in staff, the petitioners, and affected parties for the quasi-judicial 

items to be discussed. 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – PLAT – CARRIAGE HILL RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION - Chairperson 
Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed Plat consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
recommend approval of the Plat for Carriage Hill Residential Subdivision owned by JTD Land at Rogers 
Rd, LLC, and located east of Rogers Road, north of Lester Road (2303 Rogers Road). 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one 
spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request to find the proposed Plat 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and recommend approval of the Plat for Carriage Hill Residential 
Subdivision owned by JTD Land at Rogers Rd, LLC, and located east of Rogers Road, north of Lester 
Road (2303 Rogers Road).  The engineer is Dewberry Engineers, Inc. c/o Christopher Allen, P.E.  The 
existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a single-family residential subdivision with 72 lots.  The 
minimum lot area to be 9,000 sq. ft. and minimum lot wide of 75 ft.  The future land use is Residential Low 
Suburban (Max 3.5 du/ac) and the zoning is R-1.  The proposed density is 2.42 du/ac.  The tract size is 
30.58 +/- acres and the developable area is 29.73 +/- acres with 1.78 +/- acres of open space. 
 
The Carriage Hill Final Development Plan proposes the development of 72 single family residential lots 
and 0.42 acre Active and Passive Park.  The community proposed a minimum typical lot width of 75 feet 
with a minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet (8,000 s.f. is required by code).  The proposed minimum 
living area is 1,500 s.f., as set forth in Section 2.02.05.F of the Land Development Code.      
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 10’ 
Rear 20’ 
Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 10



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
2 of 8 

 

 
Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto Rogers Road.  Future road 
right-of-way is reserved for connection to future development on the northern abutting parcel, as shown 
between lots 15 and 16.  A connection to the west in front of Lot 19 prevents the abutting western parcel 
from becoming landlocked. 
 
There is one retention pond designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 
 
The developer is providing 0.42 +/- acre (18,295.20 s.f.) of active and passive recreation space.  Details of 
active and passive recreation equipment and facilities are as follows: playground and open space. 
 
Landscape buffers provided are consistent with the Land Development.  The City’s Land Development 
Code and Tree Bank policy authorize the City Council to require the applicant to make a contribution to 
the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining tree inches for the residential section. The Applicant has 
committed to pay $10.00 per deficient tree inch (totaling $11,590.00) into the Tree Bank prior to issuance 
of the initial Arbor/Clearing permit. 
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 

Total inches on-site:        5009 
Total number of specimen trees: 56 
Total inches removed:  4737 
Total inches retained: 272 
Total inches replaced:  1160 
Total Inches (Post Development): 1432 

 
A school mitigation agreement has been obtained from OCPS.  The County was notified at the time of the 
land use amendment and rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County 
planning staff regarding impact on adjacent parcels.   
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Carriage Hill - Plat, subject to the 
findings of the staff report. The Plat is consistent with the Final Development Plan, and the Final 
Development Plan is consistent with the approved Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
Staff’s recommendation is for the Planning Commission to find the Carriage Hill Plat consistent with the 
Final Development Plan and recommend approval of Carriage Hill Subdivision - Plat. 
 
The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to 
approve or deny, the PLAT based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code.  Planning Commission has already reviewed the Preliminary Development Plan for this project; 
therefore, the Final Development Plan goes directly to City Council. 
 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 

part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

Petitioner Presentation:  None. 

 

Affected Party Presentation: None. 

 

Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 

Greene closed the public hearing.  

 

 

 11



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
3 of 8 

 

 

Motion:   Tony Foster made a motion to find the proposed Plat consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan; and recommend approval of the Plat for Carriage Hill 

Residential Subdivision owned by JTD Land at Rogers Rd, LLC, and located east of 

Rogers Road, north of Lester Road (2303 Rogers Road).  Motion seconded by Linda 

Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, 

Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (7-0).  (Vote taken 

by poll.) 

 

LEGISLATIVE – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE – NEW 

ERROL - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed Future Land Use Amendment 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and to recommend approval of the Large Scale Future Land Use 

Amendment from Parks & Recreation to Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac); Residential High (0-15 du/ac); 

and Commercial (Max 0.25 FAR) for the property owned by Errol Club Villas Condo Assoc. Inc.; 5th Hole 

Investments; Errol Estate Country Club LTD; Errol Estate Management; Lexington Homes; and the City 

of Apopka generally located north of Lake Marion Drive and Lexington Parkway, south of Lester Road, 

east of Schopke Lester Road, and west of Vick Road; and to recommend approval to transmit to the Florida 

Department of Economic Opportunities for review.   

 

Staff Presentation:  James Hitt, FRA-RA, Community Development Director, stated this is a request to find 

the proposed Future Land Use Amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and to recommend 

approval of the Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment from Parks & Recreation to Residential Medium 

(0-10 du/ac); Residential High (0-15 du/ac); and Commercial (Max 0.25 FAR) for the property owned by 

Errol Club Villas Condo Assoc. Inc.; 5th Hole Investments; Errol Estate Country Club LTD; Errol Estate 

Management; Lexington Homes; and the City of Apopka; and to recommend approval to transmit to the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunities for review.  The area is generally located north of Lake 

Marion Drive and Lexington Parkway, south of Lester Road, east of Schopke Lester Road, and west of 

Vick Road. 

 
The applicant is Signature H Property Group and the consulting planner is GAI Consultants.  The existing 
use is a golf course and club house.  The proposed uses are single family units, townhomes, an assisted living 
facility, community parks, a commercial amenities complex with hotel, restaurant, aquatic park, and recreation 
facilities.  The current zoning is Parks & Recreation and the proposed zoning is Planned Unit Development 
(PUD).  The tract size is 79.09 +/- acres.  
 
The existing maximum allowable development is a golf course and a club house.  The proposed maximum 

allowable development is up to 400 dwelling units (67 single family, 194 townhome and 139 multi-family), 

commercial amenity complex with hotel, restaurant, aquatic park, and recreation facilities; or up to 261 du 

(67 single family, 194 townhome), commercial amenity complex with hotel, restaurant, aquatic park, and 

recreation facilities; 240 bed assisted living facility 
 
The proposed use of the property is compatible with the character of the surrounding area, is within close 

proximity to the SR 429/Ocoee Apopka Road interchange, and is consistent with the Mixed Use Land Use 

designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given the consistency with the 

Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study (see 

Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use 

policies.  
 
 
 
 12



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
4 of 8 

 

Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.2 Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses through: 
(1) the creation of like uses; or (2) creation of complementary uses; or (3) mitigation of adverse 
impacts. 
 
The proposed use for the subject properties as mixed use residential/non-residential development is 
consistent with the current and future proposed development of the surrounding area as 
recommended by Planning staff in the Recommendations below.   

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 
mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter trip lengths and 
balanced trip demand. 

 

The New Errol project has a proposed master plan as provided with the supporting documents.  An executed 

capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools will be required prior to adoption of 

the future land use amendment.  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 

hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016. 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval as provided below: 

 

The applicant proposed Future Land Use Designations that allow higher densities than that which are 

proposed within the proposed Master Plan.  Thus, the master plan demonstrates a more suitable density for 

the proposed development sites.  Further, compatibility of the proposed FLUM designations, as 

recommended by planning staff below, with adjacent and surrounding areas must be further demonstrated 

through buffer and screen techniques, land use design, and development standards.  As these remain 

incomplete in the Master Plan, the applicant may be able to demonstrate potential for compatibility through 

modifications to the Master Plan.  Staff is recommending to transmit the proposed FLUM amendments, as 

shown below, to State agencies. 

 

Staff’s recommendation to the Planning Commission is to recommend transmittal of the proposed Future 

Land Use Map amendments for New Errol to State agencies as follows: 
 
1. Neighborhood “A”:   Residential Low Suburban (0 – 7.5 du/ac) 
 
2. Neighborhood “B”:    B-1 – Commercial; 
      B-2 – Residential Medium Density (0 -10 du\ac) 
 
3. Neighborhood “C”:    Residential Medium Low (up to 7.5 du\ac)     
 
4. Neighborhood “D”:    Residential Medium Low (up to 7.5 du\ac)    
 
5. Neighborhood “E”:    Neighborhood E South:  Residential Low Suburban (up to 3.5 du\ac)  
 Neighborhood E North:  Residential Low (up to 5 du\ac) for Neighborhood E 

South.  
 
6. Neighborhood “F”:    Neighborhood F South:  Residential Low (up to 5 du\ac) 
      Neighborhood F North:  Residential Medium Low (up to 7.5 du\ac)  
 
 
 13



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
5 of 8 

 

 
7. Neighborhood “G”: Residential Medium Low Density (Up to 7.5 du\ac) (with interpretation of Policy 

3.1.f that institutional uses of 10 acres or less are allowed under PUD zoning and 
that an assisted living type facility may be deemed a compatible land use through 
PUD zoning. 

 

8.  A master plan under PUD zoning and a development agreement demonstrate that each of the proposed 

FLUM amendments are compatible with surrounding and abutting residential uses through appropriate 

buffer and screen techniques, height restrictions, other applicable and appropriate performance 

standards, and management of compatible and complementary land uses allowed or prohibited within 

each “Neighborhood” zone. 

 

This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 

part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

Blake Drury, GAI Consultants, Inc., 618 E South St Suite 700, Orlando, and Helmuth Wyzisk, Signature 

H Property Group, 300 South Orange Avenue Orlando, presented the details of the proposed project and a 

video. 

 

In response to questions by Mr. Foster, Mr. Drury stated the proposed mix of uses are common and can be 

found in projects such as Oakland Park and Baldwin Park.  A traffic study was completed and is consistent 

with the City’s requirements.  There will be a new access point onto Vick Road to better disperse the traffic 

flow.  The proposed speed limit will be 25 miles per hour. 

 

In response to a question by Mr. Foster, Mr. Wyzisk III, stated that 34 room hotel would be an ideal location 

for corporate events or weddings.  He stated there is a limited area for possible expansion for the hotel. 

 

In response to questions by Mr. Molina, Mr. Wyzisk III, stated that the proposed development will have no 

impact on the homeowners’ association fees.  Having the proposed development gated was considered but 

the decision was made not to have gates.  There will be security cameras installed and possibly on-site 

security as well. 

 

In response to questions by Mr. Simpson, Mr. Drury stated that due to the configuration of the land they 

used a unique approach to the project.  They plan to extend the 18-hole golf course to create a championship 

golf course.   

 

In response to a question by Mr. Molina, Mr. Wyzisk II, stated that funds for the project would come from 

the outside and the land would be used as collateral.  The amenities will be built first so as to being pulling 

in revenue.  He stated that once the amenities are built, finding investors will not be an issue. 

 

Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing and asked the Recording Secretary to read 

several letters into the record that were received from those residents unable to attend the meeting.  Those 

letter were made a part of the record. 

 

Ernest Bursey, 1270 Lexington Parkway, voiced his support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 

Sheryl Manche, 1551 Lake Marion Drive, voiced her support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 14



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
6 of 8 

 

Jean Swette, 1228 Green Vista Circle, voiced her support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 

In response questions by Madonna Patrick, 809 Pink Camelia Court, Mr. Wyzisk, III, stated that baring 

any financial downturns on a global scale or not being approved, the development will be built starting 

with the amenities.  The amenities will bring in more investors.  That includes the assisted living facility 

(ALF) and the championship golf course.  During that period the proposed Staghorn Drive will only be 

opened to construction traffic.  At this time, it is unknown if there will be a traffic signal installed at 

Staghorn Drive and Vick Road. 

 

In response to questions by Ms. Patrick, Mr. Moon stated that a transportation analysis was completed and 

a light is proposed at Vick Road and Marden Road.  He stated that if the ALF was not constructed, the 

proposed zoning would allow single and multi-families homes on that property.  Staff is recommending a 

maximum density of 7.5 dwelling units per acre.  He said that if the ALF is not constructed, townhomes 

and single family homes would likely be built in that location. 

 

In response to a question by Ms. Patrick, Mr. Wyzisk, III, stated that currently there are approximately 269 

members of the golf club.  It is estimated by the end of the first year there will be approximately 300 to 500 

members. 

 

Carl Freedman, 801 Crepe Myrtle Circle, voiced his opposition to the project siting concerns regarding the 

intensity of the commercial portion of the project; and traffic impacts due to the new roadway being built 

adjacent to Crepe Myrtle Circle and White Ivey Circle. 

 

Duane Rollins, 701 White Ivey Court, voiced his opposition to the project siting concerns regarding the 

intensity of the commercial portion of the project; and traffic impacts due to the new roadway being built 

adjacent to Crepe Myrtle Circle and White Ivey Circle.  He suggested the developer come up with formulas 

that would address the adverse impacts on the lots that will be directly impacted by the project. 

 

Frank Maxwell, 771 Crepe Myrtle Circle, stated he is not opposed to the projects; however he voiced his 

concerns regarding possible soil contamination in the area of the golf course that is to be converted for the 

project.   

 

Bob Goff, 809 Red Hibiscus Court, Vice-President of the Errol Estate Property Owners Association, asked 

that those questions be answered in writing. 

 

Bill Edwards, 2072 Lake Todd Court, voiced his concern regarding the potential contamination to the golf 

course property. 

 

Tom Watson, 1705 Golf Garden Way, voiced his support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 

Louis Smith, 1817 Precious Circle, President of the Errol Estate Property Owners Association, and Mr. 

Goff submitted information packets for the Planning Commission that included a letter to David Moon 

with a list of questions that they would like to have answered prior to approval of the City Council.  They 

asked that the questions be answered in writing. 

 

Victoria Davies, 1257 Errol Parkway, voiced her support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 
15



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
7 of 8 

 

 

Greg Zbylut, 2017 Eagles Rest Drive, voiced his support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 

Louis Nichols, 741 White Ivey Court, voiced his support of the proposed land use changes and 

development; but had concerns regarding the loose of the view of the natural setting and the wildlife from 

his backyard.  He suggested that the developer provide a method to mitigate that loose with those property 

owners directly affected. 

 

David Schmidt, 1524 Lucky Pennie Way, voiced his support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 

Michelle Hurd, 1200 Lexington Parkway, voiced her support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 

Isabelle Beaux, 1177 Errol Parkway, voiced her opposition to the proposed land use change and 

development.  Expressed concerns regarding the future of Errol Estate if the development occurs. 

 

Mr. Helmuth II reiterated that the proposed development will create new revenues streams to sustain Errol 

Estate.  The championship golf course and the ALF will underwrite the amenities.  The waterpark will have 

a social membership which will create revenue. Barring any major financial disaster in the economy, the 

golf course will stay open.  The proposed golf court will make money because it will be the best golf course 

in Central Florida. 

 

Barbara Brostrom, 801 Pink Camelia Court, voiced her concerns regarding the impacts from noise and 

lighting.  She requested that the developer nor put up a brick wall and to keep the type of vegetation and 

trees, such as oaks, that are more characteristic of the Errol Estate community.   

 

Connie Jones, 1249 Golf Point Loop, voiced her concern that once the development is constructed that 

property owners will convert their homes to short-term rentals and asked that this not be allowed. 

 

Carol Publicover, 711 Crepe Myrtle Circle, voiced her support for the new roadway.  She said that currently 

there is only one way in and out on Crepe Myrtle Circle and if the new road had been built it would have 

allowed easier access to her home during a recent family emergency. 

 

Angela Rubright, 1815 Cranberry Isles Way, voiced her support of the proposed land use changes and 

development. 

 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  

 

Chairperson Greene stated that this meeting was for the change in future land use for the subject properties 

and noted that most of the concerns expressed would be more accurately addressed during the change of 

zoning, once the future land use is adopted, and the development plan phases of the project. 

 

Mr. Moon concurred with Chairperson Greene. 

 

Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to recommend approval of the Large Scale Future 

Land Use Amendment from Parks & Recreation to Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac); 

Residential High (0-15 du/ac); and Commercial (Max 0.25 FAR) subject to: 
 16



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
8 of 8 

 

1. Neighborhood “A”: Residential Low Suburban (0-7.5 du/ac) 

2. Neighborhood “B”: B-1 – Commercial; 

B-2 – Residential Medium Density (0 -10 du\ac) 

3. Neighborhood “C”: Residential Medium Low (up to 7.5 du\ac) 

4. Neighborhood “D”: Residential Medium Low (up to 7.5 du\ac) 

5. 
Neighborhood “E” South: Residential Low Suburban (up to 3.5 du\ac)  

Neighborhood “E” North:   Residential Low (up to 5 du\ac) 

6. 
Neighborhood “F” South: Residential Low (up to 5 du\ac) 

Neighborhood “F” North: Residential Medium Low (up to 7.5 du\ac)  

7. Neighborhood “G”: Residential Medium Low Density (Up to 7.5 du\ac) 

(with interpretation of Policy 3.1.f that institutional 

uses of 10 acres or less are allowed under PUD zoning 

and that an assisted living type facility may be deemed 

a compatible land use through PUD zoning. 

8. A master plan under PUD zoning and a development agreement demonstrate that 

each of the proposed FLUM amendments are compatible with surrounding and 

abutting residential uses through appropriate buffer and screen techniques, height 

restrictions, other applicable and appropriate performance standards, and 

management of compatible and complementary land uses allowed or prohibited 

within each “Neighborhood” zone. 
 
for the property owned by Errol Club Villas Condo Assoc. Inc.; 5th Hole Investments; 
Errol Estate Country Club LTD; Errol Estate Management; Lexington Homes; and 
the City of Apopka generally located north of Lake Marion Drive and Lexington 
Parkway, south of Lester Road, east of Schopke Lester Road, and west of Vick Road; 
and to recommend approval to transmit to the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunities for review.  Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by 
James Greene, Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, Roger 
Simpson, and John Sprinkle (7-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  Mr. Hitt announced that the next public hearing for the New Errol Large Scale Future Land 

Use Amendment and request to authorize transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Development and 

other state agencies will be the City Council meeting to be held on Tuesday, August 22, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. in 

the Apopka Community Center, 519 S. Central Avenue. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt  
Community Development Director 

 

17



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 18 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by George 

Thum, Jr. & Phillip and Peggy Dionne, from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) and “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 
ac) to “City” Institutional/Public Use, for property located west of Jason Dwelley Parkway, south of West 
Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-053; 18-20-28-0000-00-054)  

  

18



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses 

  
SUBJECT:    COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE  
    
PARCEL ID #(S): 18-20-28-0000-00-053; 18-20-28-0000-00-054 
    
REQUEST:  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT 
 
FROM:    “COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 DU/10 AC) AND  
                 “CITY” AGRICULTURE (0-1 DU/5 AC) 
 
TO:      “CITY” INSTITUTIONAL/PUBLIC USE 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNERS:   George Thum, Jr. & Phillip and Peggy Dionne 
 
APPLICANT:   Orange County Public Schools c/o Tyrone Smith, AICP 
 
LOCATION: West of Jason Dwelley Parkway, south of West Kelly Park Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family residences 
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:   Proposed elementary school 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-1 (ZIP) & “City” AG (Agriculture) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional)  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING: Single-family residences 
ZONING DISTRICT:  PROPOSED: Elementary school 
 
TRACT SIZE:   15.17 +/- acres 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 19



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant intends to use the subject properties for a public elementary school, 
and requests the City to assign a future land use designation of Institutional/Public Use to the property.  Elementary 
schools are permitted within the Institutional/Public Use Future Land Use Designation.  
 
The subject properties were annexed into the City on November 16, 2005 via Ordinance 1787 and on June 21, 2017 
via Ordinance 2573.  The proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 
owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties ten acres or more are required to undergo review by State planning 
agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Institutional/Public Use is compatible with the designations 
assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 15.17 acres.  

 
Residential Very Low Suburban FLUM Uses: 
 

“The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 2 dwelling units per acre, elementary schools; 
middle schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks.” [Emphasis added] 

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report).  Based on the findings of the 
Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding and nearby land uses and the 
character of the general area. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
Institutional/Public Use designation and the proposed Professional Office\Institutional zoning. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Since the proposed use as a public elementary school is a non-residential use, a 
capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 
hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 13, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
September 6, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
TBD – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends transmittal of the change in Future Land Use 
from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) and “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Institutional\Public Use for the 
properties owned by George Thum, Jr., and Phillip and Peggy Dionne. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with 
the character of the surrounding area, and recommend transmittal of the Future Land Use Map designation from 
“County” Rural and “City” Agriculture to “City” Institutional\Public Use to the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

20



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City & 

County) 

“City” Res. Very Low Suburban (0-1 

du/2 ac) and “County” Rural (0-1 

du/10 ac) 

“City” R-

1AAA & 

“County” A-1 

Container nursery and single-family 

residence 

East (City)  Residential Estates (1 du/ac) PUD R-O-W and Rock Springs Ridge 

subdivision 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 

du/ac) 

PUD Orchid Estates residential 

subdivision(under construction) 

West (County) Rural A-1 Large lot Single family home 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant intends to develop the property as part of a public elementary school.   Predominant existing land 

uses and assigned zoning in the abutting and surrounding area are residential in nature, while nearby property 

utilized for the Northwest Recreation Complex is assigned a land use designation of Institutional/Public Use. 

These adjacent and nearby land uses are consistent with the proposed Institutional/Public Use Future Land Use 

Designation.  The proposed use as a public elementary school is a permitted use within the Institutional/Public 

Use Future Land Use Designation. 

 

North: Abutting the subject property to the north is a single-family homes and horticultural nursery.  

 

West: Properties to the west of the subject site have a future land use designation of Residential Very Low 

Suburban, current being developed as part of the Chandler Estates subdivision. 

 

South: Single-family homes are slated for development as part of the approved Orchid Estates community, with 

a future land use designation of Residential Very Low Suburban.  In addition, an existing 

Institutional/Public Use land use designation is approximately a half mile from the subject properties and 

assigned to the City of Apopka’s Northwest Recreation Complex. 

 

East: To the east of the subject site, the property fronts R-O-W for Jason Dwelley Parkway as well as is adjacent 

to the Rock Springs Ridge single-family subdivision which has a future land use designation of Residential 

Estates (0-1 du/ac). 

 

The proposed future land use designation of “City” Institutional/Public Use is consistent with the surrounding 

future land use designations to the west and south, considering the proposed use – an elementary school – provide 

an important and necessary public purpose related to the public welfare and quality of life. 

 

Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use changes. 
 

 Other Information:  
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 21



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “North Central” of the JPA.   
 
  Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study 
Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with 
the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's 
adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property fronts Jason Dwelley Parkway, a city collector 
road. The vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands 
occur on the site, and the terrain has a 0-5 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.c Residential 
Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac).  Based on the housing element of the 
City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population should the subject property 
be developed as single-family residences rather than the proposed public elementary school.   
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (City and County designations): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): Elementary School = 500 seats 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment, particularly if developed as a school site, will not negatively impact the 
housing needs as projected in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments ten (10) acres or more in size.  This site is 
greater than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan application. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the 
City of Apopka service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   100 GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  22



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 100 GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           
 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  1.8 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  4.5 lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 23



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353 MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation - Not applicable. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 
  

24



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
George Thum, Jr. & Phillip and Peggy Dionne 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) & “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: “City” Institutional/Public Use 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) & “City” AG (Agriculture) 
To: “City” PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) 

Parcel ID #s:  18-20-28-0000-00-053 & 18-20-28-0000-00-054 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

25



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
26



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 27



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
28



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
GEORGE THUM, JR & PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 
 

29



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 30 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. CHANGE OF ZONING/PUD MASTER PLAN - OAK POINTE SOUTH (AKA Thompson Hills Estates), from 

Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit Development (New Master Site Plan); for property owned by 
Thompson Hills Estates LLC (Oak Pointe PUD) and located east of Ocoee Apopka Road, north of 
McCormick Road.  (Parcel ID Nos.: 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016; 29-21-28-0000-00-033; 
and Portions of: 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004; 32-21-28-0000-00-030) 

  

30



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 8,, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: PUD Master Plan   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Use Map 

    Master Plan\PDP 

    Townhome Architectural Renderings 

    Gate Entrance Feature 
  

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING – THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES (OAK POINTE 
SOUTH PUD) 

 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016; 29-21-28-0000-00-033; and Portions 

of: 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004; 32-21-28-0000-00- 030 
 
REQUEST: Recommend to approve PUD zoning and the Oak Pointe Master 

Plan\Preliminary Development Plan subject to conditions of approval. 
  FROM: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT  
  TO: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (NEW MASTER SITE PLAN) 

  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Thompson Hills Estates LLC (Oak Pointe PUD) 
 
LOCATION:  East of Ocoee Apopka Road, north of McCormick Road 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Mixed Use 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  PUD (Planned Unit Development)  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Single-family and townhome residential development 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD) (New Master Site Plan) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    67.7 +/- acres 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 118 single family homes; 106 townhome units 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

31



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   

  

Process:  A Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning currently is assigned to the subject property.  The 

PUD Master Plan associated with the subject property expired several years ago.  A PUD new master plan 

must be approved through a rezoning hearing process. As part of the PUD  

 

Development Summary:  The PUD Master Plan includes 106 townhomes and 118 single family homes 

within a gated community with private streets.  A single master homeowners association will serve both the 

single family homes and townhomes.  

 

 Single family lots typically have a minimum width of 70 feet and a minimum lot area of 8,400 sq. 

ft., a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft, and a minimum two-car enclosed garage.  A small 

percent of single family lots (6.8% totaling 8 lots) have a minimum typical lot width of 65 feet and 

a minimum lot area of  7,800 sq. ft., also with a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft. and a 

minimum two-car enclosed garage. No three-car garages are allowed. 

 

 Townhomes will have a minimum lot width of 23 feet and a minimum lot area of 2,530 sq. ft. All 

townhome units offer a one-car enclosed garage. No two-car enclosed garages are proposed by the 

developer.  Some (75 units have a one-car driveway; some (31 units) have a two-car driveway. 

 

 Two parks are provided and will be accessible to all residents. Tract N-1 provides a community 

swimming pool and a cabana with a parking lot. A second community park provides outdoor 

recreation on 2.03 acres (Tract K-6) and includes a fenced-in dog park. 

 

 To accommodate a private, gated community, the applicant requests to vacate the right-of-way for 

Irmallee Road, a gated paved public right-of-way ranging in width from 80 feet to as much as 250 

feet.  One other property owner (not associated with the PUD application) is surrounding by the 

PUD Master Plan and accesses Irmalee Lane.   This one-acre parcel will be granted access rights to 

the private road if the Irmalee ROW is vacated by City Council. 

 

 Access will occur through a road connection to McCormick Road and a future road connection to 

Ocoee-Apopka Road.  A gate will be located at both the north and south entrances. An emergency 

gate will be located on the eastern boundary, connecting to Pelock Drive within the Apopka Woods 

community.   

 

 Perimeter buffers include:  a ten foot buffer with a six-foot high brick wall along the western 

property line adjacent to S.R. 429, a six-foot high vinyl fence within a ten foot buffer next to the 

Apopka Woods community and next to the County’s Northwest Reclamation facility. 

 

Existing Conditions:   The Oak Point property owner also owns 69.89 acres serviced by a gated public road 

– Irmalee Lane.  The site typically has a flat topography with no wetlands.   Located along the north side of 

McCormick Road, the PUD Master Plan   The City of Ocoee is situated along the south side of McCormick 

Road. The proposed residential PUD Master Plan abuts land zoned commercial.  The commercial land sites 

between McCormick Road and the single family residential Master Plan are not part of the PUD application.   

An existing public road – Irmalee Lane – extends from McCormick Road northward through the property. 

Apopka Woods is a 76 lot, single family residential neighborhood that abuts most of the eastern boundary 

of Oak Pointe.  Typical lots within Apopka wood have a minimum width of 70 feet and a minimum land 

area of 7,500 sq. ft.  32



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

The Orange County Northwest Reclamation Water Facility on portions of its north and northwest boundary, 

the Apopka Woods residential community (R-2 zoning, 70 foot wide lots), 

 

Directly to the south of Oak Pointe is a private gated residential community – McCormick Woods – with 

typical lots of 70 x 125 (8,750 sq. ft.). 

 

Annexation History:  The subject properties were annexed into the City via Ordinance 1651 on December 

18, 2002.  A public road with a right-of-way width ranging from 80 to 150 feet extends from McCormick 

Road to the Tract L-1 of the project.  

 

Recreation Amenities: 

 
Tract N-1  

 Swimming Pool. 

 Pool area surrounded by a 36” viburnum hedge, crepe myrtles, magnolia trees, live oak trees, and approved 

ground cover. 

 Pool parking lot - 13 parking plus one handicap parking space. 

 Bike rack located adjacent to parking lot. 

 2,200 +/- SF Cabana located next to the pool surrounded by landscaping that blends with the pool 

landscaping. 

 The cabana will be partially open, with the open area surrounded by a four foot metal guardrail/fence. 

 A paved sidewalk from the Cabana connects to the sidewalk along Street I. 

 An outdoor shower will be placed on both the east and west sides of the building. 

 The pool and cabana are appropriately located near the center of the development, easily accessible to both 

the single family residential units and the townhome. 

 

Tract L-6 

 

 Two multi-purpose playing fields. 

 Mulched walking trail around the perimeter of the Tract. 

 Paved sidewalk will placed along the west side of the park, connecting Street I with the Tot Lot, Dog Park, 

and parking lot. 

 Paved sidewalk will connect the parking lot at Tract O-1 with the paved sidewalk along the west side of the 

park. 

 Three picnic tables. 

 Litter receptacle - 24” X 30” size. 

 Eight benches, each with armrests. 

 Tot Lot with playground equipment – slides, climbing equipment. 

 Dog park with five foot high vinyl coated chain link fence, screened with a viburnum hedge. 

 Dogipot aluminum pet station with pet waste receptacle. 

 Dog park will be handicap accessible. 

 Bike rack located in Tract K-5, between the parking lot and sidewalk along the west side of the park. 

 Pedestrian level lighting 

 Park area surrounded by a  viburnum hedge, sabal palms, crepe myrtles, magnolia trees, live oak trees, and 

approved ground cover. 

 

 

 

 

 33



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 

RECOMMENDED PUD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:   

 

1. A development agreement must be approved by City Council that addresses dedication of a 60-foot 

wide right-of-way from the northern project line to Ocoee-Apopka Road following alignment 

delineated in the Oak Pointe North Master Plan; addresses the construction of the southern road 

from PUD south to McCormick Road; address access rights for the owner and subsequent owners 

of parcel number 29-21-28-0000-00-037 and addresses project phasing and development conditions. 

 

2. For all recreation and park improvements, a performance bond in an amount acceptable to the City 

is required if such improvements do not receive a certificate of completion by the first building 

permit issued for a residential development. 

 

3. Tree removal and arbor mitigation fee shall be determined at the time of the Final Development 

Plan. 

 

4. Number and location of handicapped parking spaces shall be determined at the time of the Final 

Development Plan. 

 

5. All recreation areas\parks shall be irrigated. 

 

6. Townhome and single family home architectural design shall be determined at the Final 

Development Plan.  The current renderings shall be removed from the PUD Master Plan and are not 

part of the Master Plan approval. 

 

7. Current gate at south end of Irmalee Lane at McCormick Road shall be removed by Oak Pointe 

owner within 14 days of written request of the city engineer. 

 

8. Irmalee Road vacate is approved by City Council upon adoption of the Oak Pointe PUD Ordinance.  

The road vacate shall be processed as part of the platting process. 

 

9. The spine road from McCormick Road to the northern property line shall be completed prior to the 

issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for a residential unit. 

 

10. All infrastructure that will be dedicated to the City and all roads and sidewalks shall be constructed 

to city standards as demonstrated in the Final Development Plan. 

 

11. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan 

provisions will expire. At such time, the City Council may: 

 

a. Permit a single one-year extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

b. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

c. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

12. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the R-3 zoning standards will 

apply to the Townhomes and R-2 zoning standards to the single family lots. No residential duplex 

units are allowed. 
34



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Residential Low Future Land Use designation and is not consistent with the Land Development 

Code subject to the recommended DRC development conditions. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: A capacity enhancement agreement and\or school mitigation 

agreement with OCPS or a letter exempting the project from school capacity enhancement is required prior 

to submittal of a final development plan. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 19, 2017. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 6, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

September 8, 2017 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Oak Pointe Planned Unit Development 

Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan subject to the DRC Conditions of Approval. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Recommend to approve Planned Unit Development Zoning and the Master Plan 

and Preliminary Development Plan based on the Conditions of Approval and findings and facts presented 

in the staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

35



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Northwest Water Reclamation Facility 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Apopka Woods subdivision 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Vacant commercial\McCormick Rd 

West (City & 

County) 

“City” Mixed Use & “County” Rural 

(0-1 du/10 ac) 

Mixed-EC 

& A-1 

SR 429 ROW & Retention Pond 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Major Arterial roadway (McCormick 

Road) and future access to Ocoee Apopka Road to the north.  A 
proposed internal spine road (Irmalee Lane, currently a gated public 
road) will be a private gated road and provide connectivity to both 
Ocoee Apopka to the north and McCormick Road to the south for 
future residents of Oak Pointe. Future land use designations and 
zoning categories assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and 
west are predominantly residential and rural.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family and townhome residential uses as set forth within the 

Planned Unit Development Master Plan. 
  

36



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 
Thompson Hills Estates LLC (Oak Pointe PUD) 

67.7 / +/- Acres 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: Planned Unit Development (PUD Residential) 
To: Planned Unit Development (New Master Site Plan) 

Parcel ID #(s): 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016; 29-21-28-0000-00-033; & 
(Portions of): 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004 & 32-21-28-0000-00- 030 

 

VICINITY MAP 

  

Subject 
Properties 

37



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

38



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

39



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC (OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD) – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 69 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
3. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-1 - Owned by Richard Chandler, from “County” 

A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA (Residential), for property located west of North Rock Springs Road, south of 
West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-030; 18-20-28-0000-00-063)  

  

69



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

 OTHER:  2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning 

    Adjacent Uses 

    Existing Uses 
  
SUBJECT:    RICHARD CHANDLER (CASE # 2017-2-1) 
    
Parcel ID #(s): 18-20-28-0000-00-030; 18-20-28-0000-00-063 
    
REQUEST:  ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 

FROM:  “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP)  

TO:         “CITY” R-1AAA (RESIDENTIAL) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Richard Chandler 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   West of North Rock Springs Road, south of West Kelly Park Road 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Very Low Suburban (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1AAA 
 
EXISTING USE:  Residential Single-Family Home 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Residential single-family home (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 residential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   5.118 +/- Acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 70



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 
zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 
Apopka.  Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy 
set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 
intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning 
change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with 
“City” R-1AAA zoning to the north, south, and west of the subject property, and PUD to the east of the 
site. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a residential building is a permitted use in the 
proposed R-1AAA zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 
this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 
Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of 
residential units considered ‘de minimus’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for 
the subject properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of 
the Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city 
overall or protection area. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative 
rezoning and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning 
from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change in Zoning 
from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA for the Chandler Richard property. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 71



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA Orchid Estates Subdivision 

East (City) Residential Estates (1 du/ ac) PUD Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA vacant 

West (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA Orchid Estates Subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Jason 

Dwelley Pkwy). It is similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and 
residential areas, and there should be no impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1AAA zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential 

Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation and with the character 
of the surrounding area and future proposed development. The R-1AAA 
zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed 
within the Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use category.   
Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted 
Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,800 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 16,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 20 ft.  

 Side: 10 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with 

code requirements for the R-1AAA district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 1.Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence 

between solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-

set and shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where 

wrought iron is used, additional landscape materials and irrigation may 

be required. This will be determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 72



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 4 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot buffer yard and a minimum six-foot high brick, 

stone or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives 

are submitted for approval. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and 

uses in accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting 

infrastructure and public facilities of less than five acres as defined in 

this code and in accordance with section 2.02.01. 

 
 
 
  

73



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 5 

 
Richard Chandler  

2.619 +/- Acres & 2.499 +/- Acres 
Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture)  
To: “City” R-1AAA (Residential)  

                         Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-030 & 18-20-28-0000-00-063 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Subject Property 

74



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 6 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

75



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

76



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 
 

77



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 78 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-2 - Owned by Bobby and Jessica Sanders, 

from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA (Residential), for property located west of North Rock Springs 
Road, south of West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-129)  

  

78



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses 
  
SUBJECT:     SANDERS PARCEL REZONING (CASE # 2017-2-2) 
        
PARCEL ID #(S): 18-20-28-0000-00-129 
        
REQUEST:   ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 

FROM:  “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP)  

TO:         “CITY” R-1AAA (RESIDENTIAL) 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNERS:   Bobby and Jessica Sanders 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   West of North Rock Springs Road, south of West Kelly Park Road 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential Very Low Suburban (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1AAA 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Vacant (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 residential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   2.501 +/- Acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 79



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 
zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 
Apopka. Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy set 
forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 
intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning change 
is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with “City” 
R-1AAA zoning to the north, south, and west of the subject property, and vacant, A-1 (ZIP) to the east of the 
site. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a residential building is a permitted use in the proposed 
R-1AAA zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 
Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of 
residential units considered ‘de minimus’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the 
subject properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the 
Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city overall or 
protection area.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative rezoning 
and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-
1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA for the Sanders property. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  80



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Estates (1 du/ac) R-1AAA Residential  

East (City) Residential Estates (1 du/ ac) A-1(ZIP) vacant 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA vacant 

West (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA Orchid Estates Subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by an adjacent property to the 

north and connects to Jason Dwelley Parkway, a city collector road.. It is 
similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and residential areas, and 
there should be no additional impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1AAA zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential 

Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation and with the character of 
the surrounding area and future proposed development. The R-1AAA 
zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed 
within the Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use category.   
Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted 
Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,800 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 16,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 20 ft.  

 Side: 10 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with code 

requirements for the R-1AAA district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 1.Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between 

solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall 

have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where wrought iron is used, 

additional landscape materials and irrigation may be required. This will be 

determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 81



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 4 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot buffer yard and a minimum six-foot high brick, 

stone or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives 

are submitted for approval. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and 

uses in accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting 

infrastructure and public facilities of less than five acres as defined in 

this code and in accordance with section 2.02.01. 

  

82



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 5 

 
 

Sanders Bobby/Jessica 

2.501 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” R-1AAA (Residential) 

Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-129 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

83



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 6 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

84



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

85



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

86



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 87 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
5. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-3 - Owned by Jolly Products and Services, 

from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG (Agriculture), for property located east of Round Lake Road, north of 
West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 11-20-27-0000-00-052)  

  

87



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning 

    Adjacent Uses 

    Existing Uses   
 
 
 

SUBJECT:    JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (CASE # 2017-2-3) 
    
PARCEL ID #(S): 11-20-27-0000-00-052 
    
REQUEST:  ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 

FROM:  “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP)  
TO:         “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) 

 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Jolly Products and Services 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   East of Round Lake Road, north of West Kelly Park Road 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Rural Settlement (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: AG (Agriculture) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Round Lake Road Nursery 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Nursery (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Nonresidential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 Nonresidential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   6.86 +/- Acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

88



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 
zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 
Apopka. Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy 
set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 
intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning 
change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with 
“City” A-1(ZIP) zoning to the east and south of the subject property, and “County” A-1 to the west and 
north. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a nonresidential building is a permitted use in 
the proposed AG zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 
this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 
Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in no residential 
units, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of 
the Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city 
overall or protection area.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative 
rezoning and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning 
from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change in Zoning 
from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG for the Jolly Products and Services property. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 89



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 du/10 acres) A-1 Single-Family home 

East (City) Mixed Use  A-1(ZIP) vacant 

South (City) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) A-1(ZIP) nursery 

West (County) Rural (1 du/10 acres) A-1 vacant 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Round 

Lake Rd). It is similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and 
residential areas, and there should be no impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural Settlement 

Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding 
area and future proposed development. The AG zoning classification is 
one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Rural 
Settlement Future Land Use category.   Development Plans shall not 
exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 25 ft.  

 Side: 25 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with 

code requirements for the AG district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and 

other similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property 

lines. Apiaries shall be located 200 feet from any property line. All 

other yard setbacks shall be a minimum of 25 feet from the property 

line. 

 

  

90



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 4 

 
 

ALLOWABLE USES:  
1. Office building and accessory buildings in conjunction with 

commercial agriculture uses for packing, shipping, and storage 
purposes. 
 

2. Commercial wholesale foliage plant production nursery. 
 

3. Tenant dwellings, for year-round employees, on the basis of one 
dwelling unit for each five acres of land, provided such dwellings 
are accessory to the principal use of land. 
 

4. Livestock barns and stables. 
 

5. Crops and animal production and the buildings and structures 
necessary to support such production. 
 

6. Kennels. 
 

7. Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their 
customary accessory structures and uses in accordance with article 
VII of this Code. 
 

8. Apiaries. 
  

91



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 5 

 

Jolly Products and Services 

6.86 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) 

Parcel ID #: 11-20-27-0000-00-052 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
  

Subject 
Property 

92



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 6 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject 
Property 

93



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

94



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

95



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 96 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
6. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-4 - Owned by Edgel LLC, from “County” A-1 

(ZIP) to “City” AG (Agriculture), for property located east of North Rock Springs Road, south of East 
Ponkan Road. (Parcel ID #: 27-20-28-0000-00-061)  

  

96



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses 
  
SUBJECT:    EDGEL LLC PARCEL REZONING (CASE # 2017-2-4) 
    
PARCEL ID #(S): 27-20-28-0000-00-061 
    
REQUEST:  ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 

FROM:  “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) 

TO:         “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Edgel LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   East of North Rock Springs Road, south of East Ponkan Road 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Agriculture (1 du/5 acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: AG (Agriculture) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Nursery\ Manufactured Home 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Agriculture or residential 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Nonresidential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 Nonresidential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.95 +/- Acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

97



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 
zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 
Apopka. Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy set 
forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 
intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning change 
is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with “County” 
A-2 zoning to the east and north of the subject property, and “City” AG to the south and CN to the west. The 
existing and proposed use of the subject site for a nonresidential building is a permitted use in the proposed AG 
zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. This parcel is located in the Wekiva River 
Protection Area and north of Lester Road, and is limited to a maximum density of one unit per five aces pursuant 
to the Joint Planning Agreement with Orange County government.  
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 
Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in no residential units, 
therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Central Area” 
of the Joint Planning Area with Orange County and the Wekiva River Protection Area. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative rezoning 
and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-
1 (ZIP) to “City” AG for the Edgel parcel. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 98



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) A-2 Vacant 

East (County) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) A-2 Single-family home 

South (City) AG (0 – 1 du/ 5 acre) AG (Agriculture) Warehouse 

West (City) Commercial CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Vacant  

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a Minor Arterial roadway 

(N Rock Springs Rd). It is similar in nature to the surrounding 
agricultural and residential areas, and there should be no impact on 
traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG zoning is consistent with the City’s Agriculture Future 

Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and 
future proposed development. The AG zoning classification is one of the 
acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Agriculture Future Land 
Use category.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed 
in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 25 ft.  

 Side: 25 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with 

code requirements for the AG district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and 

other similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property 

lines. Apiaries shall be located 200 feet from any property line. All 

other yard setbacks shall be a minimum of 25 feet from the property 

line. 

 

 

  

99



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 4 

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  
1. Office building and accessory buildings in conjunction with 

commercial agriculture uses for packing, shipping, and storage 

purposes. 

 

2. Commercial wholesale foliage plant production nursery. 

 

3. Tenant dwellings, for year-round employees, on the basis of one 

dwelling unit for each five acres of land, provided such dwellings 

are accessory to the principal use of land. 

 

4. Livestock barns and stables. 

 

5. Crops and animal production and the buildings and structures 

necessary to support such production. 

 

6. Kennels. 

 

7. Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their 

customary accessory structures and uses in accordance with article 

VII of this Code. 

 

8. Apiaries. 

  

100



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

Edgel LLC 

4.95 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) 

Parcel ID #: 27-20-28-0000-00-061 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

Subject Property 

Subject 

Property 

101



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 6 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject Property 

Subject 
Property 

102



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

103



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

104



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 105 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
7. 2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-2-5 - Owned by Deborah Halm, from “County” A-

1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates), for property located west of Mt. Plymouth Road, 
north of West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-122)  

  

105



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning 

    Adjacent Uses 

    Existing Uses 
  
SUBJECT:    HALM PARCEL REZONING (CASE # 2017-2-5) 
    
PARCEL ID #(S): 09-20-28-7608-00-122 
    
REQUEST:  ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 

FROM:  “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP)  

TO:         “CITY” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Deborah Halm   
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   West of Mt. Plymouth Road, north of West Kelly Park Road 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Rural Settlement (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family home 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family home (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 residential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.91 +/- Acre 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

106



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “City” 
zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 
Apopka.  Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy set 
forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 
intensities and uses allowed under the existing “County” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning change 
is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with “City” 
AG zoning to the west, north, and south of the subject property, and “County” R-CE to the east. The existing 
and proposed use of the subject site for a residential building is a permitted use in the proposed RCE-1 zoning 
district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 
Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of 
residential units considered ‘de minimus’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the 
subject properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the 
Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city overall or 
protection area.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative rezoning 
and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-
1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 for the Halm property. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  107



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) AG Single Family Home 

East (County) Low Density Residential (LDR) 4 du/ac R-CE Single Family Homes 

South (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) AG Single Family Home 

West (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) AG Single Family Home 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (My 

Plymouth Rd). It is similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and 
residential areas, and there should be no impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed RCE-1 zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural 

Settlement Future Land Use designation and with the character of the 
surrounding area and future proposed development. The RCE-1 zoning 
classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within 
the Rural Settlement Future Land Use category.   Development Plans 
shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use 
Designation. 

 
RCE-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 2,000 sq. ft.  

Minimum Site Area: 1 acre 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 35 ft.  

 Rear: 30 ft.  

 Side: 15 ft.  

 Corner 35 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site is legal non-

conforming for the RCE-1 district.  

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 1. Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence 

between solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-

set and shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where 

wrought iron is used, additional landscape materials and irrigation may 

be required. This will be determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 108



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 4 

 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, 

stone or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives 

are submitted for approval. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES: 1. Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and 

uses in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

2. Guest/granny quarters in accordance with article VII of this code. 

  

109



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 5 

 
Deborah Halm 
0.91 +/- Acre 

Proposed Zoning Change: 
From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates) 
Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-122 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

Subject 
Property 

 

110



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 6 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

111



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

112



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

113



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 114 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. ORDINANCE NO. 2582 – Amending the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development 

Code, Article III, Section 3.05, to establish a prohibition of medical marijuana treatment center dispensing 
facilities withn the boundaries of the City as authorized by Section 381.986, Florida Statutes. 

  

114



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Proposed Ordinance No. 2582 
 OTHER:   Ordinance No. 2388 

  
SUBJECT:    AMENDING THE CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARCTICLE III, SECTION 3.05, TO 
ESTABLISH A PROHIBITION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT 
CENTER DISPENSING FACILITIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE 
CITY AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 381.986, FLORIDA STATUTES. 

    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE, ARTICLE III, SECTION 3.05, TO ESTABLISH A PROHIBITION OF 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING FACILITIES 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
The City of Apopka adopted Ordinance 2388 on May 6, 2015 to regulate and govern the location and extent of 
the cultivation, processing and dispensing of cannabis and medical marijuana within the City of Apopka.  A 
need to regulate medical marijuana emerged on June 16, 2014, when Governor Scott signed the Compassionate 
Medical Cannabis Act of 2014 into law, allowing for the cultivation, processing and dispensing of low THC 
cannabis statewide, subject to local government zoning laws.  
 
The Florida Legislature pass new laws in 2017 regarding medical marijuana is reaction to a state-wide 
referendum approved in November 2016 to expand opportunities for the availability of marijuana for medical 
purposes.  Section 381.986 (11) of the Florida Statutes now states if medical marijuana treatment center 
dispensing facilities are not banned in the municipality, the municipality may not enact any ordinance which 
limits the number or the location of the dispensing facilities which are more restrictive than how a pharmacy is 
regulated in that municipality.  In summary, local governments can only regulate medical marijuana dispensaries 
in the same and equal manner that is regulates pharmacies.  The two must be treated the same under a local 
governments zoning laws and development standards. 
 
However, the Florida Legislature in 2017 also gave local governments the opportunity to ban medical marijuana 
dispensaries.  Whereas Florida law limits a local government’s ability to govern the location and extent of 
medical marijuana dispensaries within the City of Apopka; and whereas the impacts of such use on adjacent or 
nearby residential areas, schools, religious facilities, and government properties is uncertain; the Development 
Review Committee and City staff recommend that the City Council ban dispensaries until the City gains more 
information and knowledge regarding the impacts generated by medical marijuana dispensaries. 
 
Cultivation and processing of cannabis\medical marijuana is not affected by proposed Ordinance 2582.  These 
activities are allowed subject to regulations established through Ordinance 2388. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 115



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
ORDINANCE NO. 2582 – MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY PROHIBITION 
PAGE 2 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

August 16, 2017 – City Council 1st Reading (7:00 pm) 

September 6, 2017 – City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21 & 28, 2017 – Public Hearing Notice\Ordinance Heading 

August 25, 2017 – Ordinance Heading  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Proposed Ordinance 2582, Prohibiting 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries within the City of Apopka. 

  

Recommended Motion:  Recommend approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, 

Part III, Land Development Code, Article III, Section 3.05, to establish a prohibition of medical marijuana 

treatment center dispensing facilities. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings 

are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

116



ORDINANCE NO. 2582 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PROHIBITION OF MEDICAL 

MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING FACILITIES 

WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY AS AUTHORIZED BY 

SECTION 381.986, FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING LEGISLATIVE 

FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; MORATORIUM 

CONTINGENCY; SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to 

Article VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida; Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes; and 

Section 381.986, Florida Statute; and 

WHEREAS, potential adverse impacts on the health, safety, and welfare of residents and 

businesses from secondary effects associated with the sale and distribution of marijuana exists, 

potentially including; offensive odors, trespassing, theft, fire hazards, increased crime in and about 

the medical marijuana dispensing facility businesses, robberies, negative impacts on nearby 

businesses and residences, nuisance problems, and potential reduction in property values in the 

surrounding area; 

WHEREAS, certain of the above potential adverse impacts are accentuated by the current 

difficulties experiences by medical marijuana dispensing facility businesses in obtaining banking 

services for selling a substance in violation of federal law, necessitating such businesses to operate 

on a cash basis; and 

WHEREAS, there exists the potential for misappropriation and diversion of medical 

marijuana to non-medical uses; and 

WHEREAS, in 1996, the state of California became the first state to legalize the use of 

medical marijuana, and several other states subsequently enacted laws legalizing medical 

marijuana in various circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, the California Police Chiefs Association developed a Task Force on 

Marijuana Dispensing facilities that prepared the “White Paper on Marijuana Dispensing facilities” 

published in 2009 (“White Paper”); and 

WHEREAS, the White Paper examined the direct and indirect adverse impacts of 

marijuana in local communities and indicated that marijuana dispensing facilities may attract or 

cause ancillary crimes, and may result in adverse effects, such as marijuana smoking in public, the 

sale of other illegal drugs at dispensing facilities, loitering and nuisances, and increased traffic at 

dispensing facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the White Paper further indicates that the presence of marijuana dispensing 

businesses may contribute to the existence of a secondary market for illegal, street-level 

distribution of marijuana; and 

DRAFT 
 

117



ORDINANCE NO. 2582         DRAFT 
PAGE 2 
 

WHEREAS, the White Paper outlines the following typical complaints received from 

individuals regarding certain marijuana dispensing facility study areas; high levels of traffic going 

to and from the dispensing facilities, people loitering in the parking lot of the dispensing facilities, 

people smoking marijuana in the parking lot of the dispensing facilities; vandalism near dispensing 

facilities, and citizens worried that they may become a crime victim due to the proximity to 

dispensing facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the White Paper ultimately concludes that there are or may be adverse 

secondary effects created by the presence of medical marijuana dispensing facilities in 

communities; and 

WHEREAS, The Marijuana Policy Group has published a memorandum called 

“Municipal Dispensary Allocation; Florida” which evaluated the market need for medical 

marijuana dispensing facilities and the harmful consequences and secondary effects of 

oversaturation of medical marijuana dispensing facilities within the market place; and 

WHEREAS, the Marijuana Policy Group determined that Florida should have no more 

than one dispensing facility for each 50,000 residents and the optimal ratio is one dispensing 

facility per 67,222 residents.   The City of Apopka has an estimated population of 48,000 residents, 

well below the estimated ratios; and 

WHEREAS, Section 381.986 (11), Florida Statutes, authorizes a municipality to “ban 

medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facilities from being located within the boundaries 

of that municipality”; and 

WHEREAS, Section 381.986 (11) also states if medical marijuana treatment center 

dispensing facilities are not banned in the municipality, the municipality may not enact any 

ordinance which limits the number or the location of the dispensing facilities which are more 

restrictive than how a pharmacy is regulated in that municipality; and 

WHEREAS, based on the Marijuana Policy Groups analysis of optimal population ratios, 

the statutory restrictions placed on a municipality if they allow medical marijuana dispensaries 

within their jurisdiction, there is a rational basis for the City to exercise its authority under Section 

381.986 to ban medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facilities within the boundaries of 

the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City finds that this Ordinance is in the interests of public health, safety, 

and the welfare of its community. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA:  

 

118



ORDINANCE NO. 2582         DRAFT 
PAGE 3 
 

SECTION 1: FINDINGS OF FACT.   The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and 

confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a part of this ordinance. 

SECTION 2: DEFINITIONS 

(a) “Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility” means any facility where 

medical marijuana, any product derived from medical marijuana, or any medical 

marijuana delivery device is dispensed at retail. 

SECTION 3: CREATED  

(a) Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility ban. Medical Marijuana 

Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities are prohibited and shall not be located within 

the boundaries of the City.   The City shall not accept, process or approve any request 

or application for a development order, building permit or other approval associated 

with a proposed Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility. 

SECTION 4: CODIFICATION.  This Ordinance shall be incorporated into the Apopka 

City Code.  Any section, paragraph number, letter and/or any heading may be changed or modified 

as necessary to effectuate the foregoing.   Grammatical, typographical and similar like errors may 

be corrected, and additions, alterations, and omissions not affecting the construction or meaning 

of this Ordinance or the City Code may be freely made. 

SECTION 5: MORATORIUM CONTINGENCY.  In the event Section 381.986, 

Florida Statute is amended or interpreted by a court of competent jurisdiction in a way as to 

eliminate or prevent the City’s ability to ban or prohibit Medical Marijuana Treatment Center 

Dispensing Facilities within the City limits, upon the effective date of such, an automatic one-year 

moratorium shall go into place on the acceptance, processing and approval of Medical Marijuana 

Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities (including by way of acceptance, proceeding and approval 

of applications for development orders and permits) within the City limits in order to give the City 

time to evaluate changes in the applicable law, the City’s ability to regulate such uses and activities 

and potentially enact local legislation regarding the same.  Such one-year moratorium may be 

terminated early through resolution or ordinance of the City Council. 

SECTION 6: SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, 

word or provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court 

of competent jurisdiction, whether for substantive, procedural, or any other reason, such portion 

shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 7: CONFLICTS.   In the event of a conflict or conflicts between this Ordinance 

and any other Ordinance or provision of law, this Ordinance controls to the extent of the conflict, 

as allowable under the law.  

 

119



ORDINANCE NO. 2582         DRAFT 
PAGE 4 
 

SECTION 8: EFFECTIVE DATE.   This Ordinance shall become effective immediately 

upon adoption by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida.  

SECTION 9: INCLUSION INTO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE.   It is the 

intent of the City Council that the provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of 

the City of Apopka Land Development Code, re-arranged to meet existing codification, and that 

sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word “Ordinance” may be 

changed to “section”, “article”, “regulation”, or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such intentions. 

 
READ FIRST TIME: August 16. 2017 
  
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED: 

 
September 6, 2017 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED as to form and legality for 
use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 
Florida. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  

 

 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 132 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. PLAT – FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) –Owned by Michael L. 

Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP, property located at 180 East 1st Street. (Parcel 
ID #s: 09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122)  

  

132



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Subdivision Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Plat 
  
SUBJECT:    PLAT - FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR 

SUPPLY SITE) 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FIRST STREET REATAIL 

CENTER PLAT 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Michael L. Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP 
 
ENGINEER:                         Hanlex Civil, LLC 
 
LOCATION: 180 West 1st Street (South of 1st Street and East of Washington Avenue) 

 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-2 
 
EXISTING USE:                    Horticultural Nursery 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Retail Center 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.09 +/- Acres (S.F.) 
   
BUILDING SIZE: 19,027 S.F. and 18,000 Outdoor Display Area 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT: 30 Feet  
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.14 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 133



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial PO/I Office Building and Residential Duplex 

East (City) Office PO/I SFR (4) 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Gas Station and Automotive Repair 

West (City) Commercial C-2 Retail and Warehouse Buildings 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Fist Street Retail Center Plat covers the property occupied by the 

Tractor Supply- Apopka - Final Development Plan, which was approved by City Council on December 21, 

2016 for 19,027 square feet of commercial retail space with and 18,000 square feet outdoor display area.   

To consolidate existing lots into one parcel, the plat performs as a replat to create one unified development 

parcel. The 3.9 acres site is located south of West 1st Street and East of Washington Ave.  The plat will 

consolidate several lots into one lot to unify the property ownership and eliminate lot lines crossing the 

development site. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

August 16, 2017- City Council (7:00 pm) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee the  First Street Retail Center Plat  to be consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and Tractor Supply Final Development Plan and 
recommends the approval of the First Street Retail Center Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report 
and conditions of approval. 
 

Recommended Motion:  Find the First Street Retail Center Plat consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 

Land Development Code, and Final Development Plan, and recommend approval of the First Street Retail 

Center Plat Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report and conditions of approval. 

 

Planning Commission Role: The role of the Planning Commission for this application is to advise the City 

Council to approve or deny based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, 

and Final Development Plan.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

134



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) 
PAGE 3 

 
Application:  First Street Retail Center Plat 
Owner:   Michael L. Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP 

Applicant:  Hanlex First Street, LLC 

Engineer:  Hanlex Civil, LLC 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122 
Location:  180 East 1st Street 
Total Acres:   3.90 +/- Acres  
 
   

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 135



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 
FIRST STREET RETAIL CENTER PLAT (AKA TRACTOR SUPPLY SITE) 
PAGE 4 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

136



137



138



139



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Page 140 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. FINAL DEVEVLOPMENT PLAN – SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE ADDITION –Owned by Shoot 

Straight Holding Co., Inc., property located at 1351 Tropicana Circle. (Parcel ID #s: 13-21-28-5300-02-040; 
13-21-28-5300-02-060; 13-21-28-5300-02-018; 13-21-28-5300-02-080)  

  

140



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: August 8, 2017 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

 OTHER:   Site/Landscape Plan 

    Architectural Renderings 
  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE 

ADDITION – PHASE 4 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE ADDITION – PHASE 4. 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Shoot Straight Holding Co., LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 1351 Tropicana Circle (generally located north of Kenneth Street, east of S 

Orange Blossom Trail). 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 13-21-28-5300-02-040; 13-21-28-5300-02-060; 13-21-28-5300-02-018;  

13-21-28-5300-02-080 
 
LAND USE:   Commercial 
 
ZONING:   C-1 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant (former Mobile Home Park was demolished)  
 
PROPOSED USE:  Expansion of Shoot Straight indoor gun range & firearm sales  
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.8 +/- acres development site\ 6.37 acres overall 
 
BUILDING SIZE:  32,856 S.F. 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT: 24 feet 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.12 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

141



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 
 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Vacant 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 R-O-W, Retail & Billboard 

West (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Retail & Gun Range (Shoot Straight) 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Final Development Plan proposes 32,856 square feet of additional 

commercial retail next to an existing 30,000 +/-sq. ft. of retail commercial\warehousing.  The site is located 

north of Tropicana Circle and east of Orange Blossom Trail 

  

PARKING:  A total of 39 parking spaces are being added to the site to for Phase 4 in accordance with LDC 

6.03.02. Two (2) of the 39 parking spaces are reserved as handicapped parking spaces.  The overall 

combined number of parking spaces for Phases 1-4 is 117. The total is also in accordance with LDC 6.03.02.   

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s 

Development Design Guidelines.  Architectural renderings appear at the last page of the Final Development 

Plan. Exterior colors will be the same as the existing buildings. 

   

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond.  

The on-site stormwater management system is designed to meet standards set forth in the Land 

Development Code.  

  

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   A minimum ten foot landscape buffer is provided along Orange Blossom 

Trail and Tropicana Circle. The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient 

landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
  
Total inches on-site:      1,054 
Total number of specimen trees:       28 
Total specimen removed:         13  
Total specimen inches retained:       48    
Total specimen inches removed:     357 
Total non-specimen inches removed:     551    
Total non-specimen inches retained:        98 
Total inches replaced:          27 
Total inches post development:  1,054 
 
TREE PROGRAM:  The City’s Land Development Code and Tree Bank policy permit the applicant to 
make a contribution to the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining deficient tree inches at $10.00 per 
inch. The total amount required to be paid into the Tree Bank will be $4,068 dollars. 
 

 142



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

August 16, 2017 - City Council (7:00 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the Final Development Plan to be consistent with the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan and Land Development Code, recommending approval of the Shoot Straight 
Warehouse Phase 4 - Final Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 

Recommend approval of the Shoot Straight Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff 

report. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

143



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 
 
 

Application:  Shoot Straight Warehouse Addition Phase 4 – Final Development Plan 
Owner/Applicant:  Shoot Straight Holding Co., LLC 

Engineer:  American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    13-21-28-5300-02-040; 13-21-28-5300-02-060; 13-21-28-5300-02-018;  

13-21-28-5300-02-080 
Location:  1351 Tropicana Circle 
Total Acres:   3.8 +/- Acres  

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property

144



PLANNING COMMISSION – AUGUST 8, 2017 

SHOOT STRAIGHT WAREHOUSE EXPANSION, PHASE 4 - FINAL DEVEWLOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 
 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162


	Top
	1 08-08-17 - PC - Minutes - July 11, 2017
	PC 07-11-17 Minutes.pdf

	2 08-08-17 - PC - Minutes - July 25, 2017
	PC 07-25-17 Minutes.pdf

	1. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - Large Scale FLUM - George Thum Jr &amp; Phillip &amp; Peggy Dionne
	1 George Thum Jr &amp; Dionne -  FLU - PC 8-8-17.pdf

	2. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Dev Plan - Oak Point South
	1 Oak Pointe (South) PUD - ZON - PC 08 08 17.pdf
	2 Oak Pointe (South) PUD Master Plan_PDP.pdf

	3. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Chandler (2017-2-1)
	1 2017-2-1- Richard Chandler PC 08-08-17.pdf

	4. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Sanders (2017-2-2)
	1 2017-2-2- Sanders PC 08-08-17.pdf

	5. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Jolly (2017-2-3)
	1 2017-2-3- Jolly  PC 08-08-17.pdf

	6. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-2 Admin REzoning - Edgel LLC (2017-2-4)
	1 2017-2-4- Edgel LLC - PC 08-08-17.pdf

	7. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Deborah Halm (2017-2-5)
	1 2017-2-5- Halm PC 08-08-17.pdf

	8. 08-08-17 - PC - Public Hearing - Medical Marijuana Dispensary Prohibition
	1 Med Marijuana Dispensary Prohibition - PC - 08-08-17.pdf
	2 Ord 2582 MED MARIJUANA dispense ban - draft (8-2-17).pdf
	3 Ord. 2388 - Signed.pdf

	1. 08-08-17 - PC - Site Plan - First Street Retail Center Plat (aka Tractor Supply)
	1 First Street Retial Center Plat-Replat PC 8-8-2017.pdf
	2 First Street Retail Centerl Plat-Replat.pdf
	3 Current Antiquated Plat.pdf

	2. 08-08-17 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - Shoot Straight Warehouse Addition
	1 Shoot Straight FDP PC 8-8-17.pdf
	2 Shoot Straight Warehouse FDP  7.21.17.pdf

	Bottom

